IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

No. 73048

Electronically Filed Dec 14 2017 03:00 p.m. Elizabeth A. Brown Clerk of Supreme Court

HELEN NATKO,

Appellant,

VS.

THE STATE OF NEVADA

Respondent.

District Court Case No. G-13-038863-A

Appellant's Opening Brief

Daniel T. Foley, Esq. Nevada Bar No. 1078 FOLEY & OAKES, PC 626 So. 8th Street Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 Tel.: (702) 384-2070 Fax: (702) 384-2128 mike@foleyoakes.com *Attorneys for Appellant*

RULE 26.1 DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

This is an appeal from a Jury verdict of conviction of two Class B Felonies under NRS 200.5092, 200,5099 –NOC50304 and NRS 205,0832, 205,0835.4 – NOC 55991, in Department XIX of the Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County, Nevada

The Supreme Court and Court of Appeals have jurisdiction of this appeal pursuant to NRAP Rule 3B, NRS 177.015(1)(b), NRS 177.015(3), and NRS 177.025.

The Jury Verdict in this case was handed down on April 11, 2017. Appellant's Notice of Appeal was filed on May 5, 2017.

Counsel certifies that this appeal is from a final verdict in this case.

ROUTING STATEMENT

This is an appeal from the conviction of two class B felonies. The Court of Appeals should be assigned this case because this is not a death penalty case that would automatically be assigned to the Supreme Court under NRAP 17(a)(2) nor is this a Class A felony as referenced in the first sentence of NRAP 17(b)(1). The last sentence of NRAP 17(b)(1) is confusing and inconsistent with the two sections referenced above.

I. STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

The sole issue on appeal is the Trial Court's Jury Instruction Number 18, which Appellant contends was a misstatement of law that led directly to the conviction of the Appellant.

II. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Two criminal charges were filed against Appellant Helen Natko for her withdrawal of funds from her joint bank account with Delford Mencarelli on July 5, 2013. AA00001 – 00002, AA00033, AA00083, and AA00193. Appellant redeposited all of the funds twenty-six (26) days later into the same joint bank account on July 31, 2013. AA00033 and AA00193. The State charged Appellant with two class B felonies of Exploitation of a Vulnerable Person and Theft based entirely on the July 5, 2013 withdrawal from the Joint Account. AA00001 – 00002, AA00003, and AA00083 – 00084. The result in District Court was a jury verdict of guilty against Appellant on both criminal charges. AA00166 – 00168.

Appellant was sentenced to 24 months to 96 months in prison on Count 1, 12 months to 48 months on count 2, and both sentences were suspended. Appellant was placed on probation for up to five years, ordered to pay a \$10,000 fine, ordered to pay \$25 administration fee, ordered to pay \$3.00 DNA collection fee, and ordered to pay \$150 DNA Analysis fee. AA00160 – 00162.

Appellant specifically and timely objected to Jury Instruction No. 18. AA00077 – 00096. Appellant also verbally moved the Court for a directed verdict

after the State's case was completed, which was denied. Appellant also filed a post-trial Motion to Set Aside the Verdict and Enter Judgment of Acquittal, which was denied. AA00102 – 00144, AA00150 – 00156, and AA00157.

III. STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

Appellant is 79 years old. AA00102. Appellant and Delford Mencarelli ("Mr. Mencarelli") began an exclusive romantic relationship in Pennsylvania on July 5, 1982 that lasted for thirty-three (33) years until Mr. Mencarelli's death on July 3, 2015. AA00102 - 00103, AA00033, and AA00038. Appellant's and Mr. Mencarelli's spouses both died in 1981. AA00102 - 00103 and AA00033. Mr. Mencarelli was 84 years old when he died on July 3, 2015. AA00102 - 00103, AA00033, and AA00038. After dating Mr. Mencarelli for ten years, Appellant moved to Las Vegas by herself in 1992, leaving Mr. Mencarelli behind in Pennsylvania. AA00102 - 00103 and AA00033. Mr. Mencarelli eventually moved to Las Vegas in 2002, ten years later, for the sole reason of being with Appellant. AA00102 - 00103 and AA00034. Mr. Mencarelli moved into Appellant's house, which she purchased herself and paid off on her own in 1994, and they resided there together until Mr. Mencarelli's death on July 3, 2015. AA00102 - 00103, AA00033, and AA00038.

On July 19, 2012, ten years after Mr. Mencarelli moved in with Appellant in Las Vegas, Mr. Mencarelli and Appellant both executed durable powers of attorney for health care purposes, naming each other as their respective Power of

Attorney. AA00196 – 00199 and AA00200 – 00204. Four days later, on July 23, 2012, Mr. Mencarelli added Appellant as a joint owner of his bank account at the IBEW Plus Credit Union ("the Bank"). AA00169 – 00194 and AA00195. The account numbered XXXX4389 is hereinafter referred to as "the Joint Account." A copy of the Bank's signature page/contract executed by Mr. Mencarelli and Appellant was admitted at trial as both State's Exhibit 10 and Defendant's Exhibit "A". AA00195. The Bank's signature page/contract specifically states:

The Credit Union is hereby authorized to recognize any of the signatures below in the payment of funds or the transaction of any business for this account. The Joint owners of this account hereby agree with each other and with the Credit union that all sums, now, heretofore, or hereafter paid in on shares by any or all said joint owners and shall be owned by them jointly, and be subject to the withdrawal or receipt of any of them. (emphasis added) AA00195

One year after Mr. Mencarelli made Appellant a joint owner of the Joint Account, on July 5, 2013, Appellant withdrew \$195,000 from the Joint Account and deposited the \$195,000 into her own account. AA00001 – 00003, AA00033, and A00193. Twenty-six days later on July 31, 2013, Appellant re-deposited the \$195,000 to the Joint Account. AA00033 and A00193.

Cross Petitions for the appointment of Guardian for Mr. Mencarelli were filed by Appellant and Mr. Mencarelli's daughter, Terri Black, in July 2013. AA00037. Appellant ultimately prevailed and was appointed as Mr. Mencarelli's guardian in August 2014. AA00037.

Prior to Appellant being appointed as Mr. Mencarelli's Guardian in August 2014, Ms. Denise Comastro, a professional guardian, was appointed temporary guardian. AA00010. The \$195,000 from the Joint Account was deposited into the Temporary Guardian's account. \$229,000 held in a Pennsylvania joint account owned by Mr. Mencarelli and his daughter were also deposited into the temporary guardian's account. AA00010.

The Trial Court in the subject criminal case, over Appellant's counsel's objections, gave contrary and inconsistent Jury Instructions regarding the ownership of the Joint Bank account. AA00097 – 00100. On the one hand, the Trial Court instructed the jury that each joint owner of a joint bank account owned all the money in a joint account. AA00098 and AA00099. On the other hand, the Trial Court instructed the jury that despite joint ownership of all the money in a joint account, a joint owner of a joint account did not necessarily own the money in the joint account. AA00100.

The Trial Court gave Jury Instruction Number 16, which provided: "When a deposit has been made in the name of the depositor and one or more other persons, and in a form intended to be paid or delivered to any one of them, or the survivor or survivors of them, the deposit is the property of the persons as joint tenants." AA00098.

The Trial Court also gave Jury Instruction Number 18, which provided: "A person's status as a joint account holder does not by itself provide lawful

authority to use or transfer another's assets for their own benefit." AA00100.

Jury Instruction Number 18 is a misstatement of the law.

Appellant was convicted of Class B felonies of financial exploitation and theft for having withdrawn \$195,000 from her Joint Account for 26 days in July 2013. AA00166 – 00168.

Appellant filed a Motion To Set Aside Verdict and Enter a Judgment of Acquittal, which was also denied. AA00102 – 00144, AA00150 - 00156, and AA00157.

IV. SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The Trial Court gave conflicting Jury Instructions to the Jury regarding the ownership and entitlement to funds in "joint bank account". The Trial Court instructed the jury that each joint owner of a joint bank account owned all the money in a joint account which is the law pursuant to NRS 100.085. At the same time, the Trial Court instructed the jury that each joint owner of a joint account did not necessarily own the money in the joint account. In giving the second instruction that conflicted with NRS 100.085, the Trial Court relied on the case of *Walch v. State*, 112 Nev. 25, 909 P.2d 1184 (1996), which was effectively over ruled by the Nevada Legislature's amendment of 100.085 in 1995.

The Appellant was ultimately convicted of withdrawing funds from her own joint bank account, which never could have happened had the jury been

properly instructed.

A. Standard Of Review

2

1

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

V. ARGUMENT

This Court's review of the propriety of the Trial Court giving Jury

Instruction Number 18 is a *de novo* review. This Court has repeatedly held that it

reviews de novo whether a jury instruction is a correct statement of the law.

Clancy v. State, 129 Nev. 840, 845, 313 P.3d 226, 229 (2013); Berry v. State, 125

Nev. 265, 273, 212 P.3d 1085, 1091 (2009); Cook v. Sunrise Hospital & Medical

Center LLC, 124 Nev. 997, 1003, 194 P.3d 1214, 1217 (2008); Nay v. State, 123

Nev. 326, 330, 167 P.3d 430, 433 (2007).

B. Jury Instruction Number 18 Is In Direct Contradiction Of NRS 100.085, As Well As Jury Instruction Numbers 16 And 17, Which Are **Quotes From NRS 100.085**

The Trial Court gave Appellant's proposed Jury Instruction Numbers 16 and 17 without objection from the State. Jury Instruction Numbers 16 and 17 are direct quotes from NRS 100.085.

Jury Instruction Number 16 provided: "When a deposit has been made in the name of the depositor and one or more other persons, and in a form intended to be paid or delivered to any one of them, or the survivor or survivors of them, the deposit is the property of the persons as joint tenants." AA00098.

NRS 100.085(1) provides in pertinent part: "When a deposit has been made in the name of the depositor and one or more other persons, and in a form

intended to be paid or delivered to any one of them, or the survivor or survivors of them, the deposit is the property of the persons as joint tenants.

Jury Instruction Number 17 provided:

The use by a depositor of any of the following words or terms in designating the ownership of an account indicates the intent of the depositor that the account be held in joint tenancy:

- (a) Joint;
- (b) Joint account;
- (c) Jointly held;
- (d) Joint tenants;
- (e) Joint tenancy; or
- (f) Joint tenants with right of survivorship. AA0099.

NRS 100.085(4) provides in pertinent part:

[T]he use by the depositor of any of the following words or terms in designating the ownership of an account indicates the intent of the depositor that the account be held in joint tenancy:

- (a) Joint;
- (b) Joint account;
- (c) Jointly held;
- (d) Joint tenants;
- (e) Joint tenancy; or
- (f) Joint tenants with right of survivorship

Again, it is undisputed that Jury Instruction Numbers 16 and 17 are accurate statements of the law as they are direct quotes from NRS 100.085.

The State offered and the Trial Court gave Jury Instruction Number 18, which provided: "A person's status as a joint account holder does not by itself provide lawful authority to use or transfer another's assets for their own benefit." AA00100. The State's only support for this instruction was this Court's decision in *Walch v. State*, 112 Nev. 25, 909 P.2d 1184 (1996). The Trial Court relied on

Walch v. State in deciding to give Jury Instruction numbered 18. AA00077 - 00096.

A word by word analysis of the three Jury Instructions is not necessary. What the Trial Court did is instruct that a joint account owner owns all of the funds in a joint account regardless of who deposited the funds (Numbers 16 and 17), and at the same time, instructed that a joint account owner does not necessarily own all of the funds in a joint account. There is no question that Instruction 18 is contrary to Instructions 16 and 17, and therefore contrary to NRS 100.085. The Trial Court did not give any kind of instruction regarding how one would determine when a joint account is or is not an NRS 100.085 joint account. The reason, of course, is that there can be no such additional information or indicia under NRS 100.085.

The Trial Court's Instruction Number 18 was a clear misstatement of the law that is set forth in NRS 100.085 and should not have been given to the Jury. The Appellant was an undisputed owner of the subject Joint Account, and by statute and contract, had the right to remove all funds from the Joint Account.

C. As A Joint Owner Of The Subject Bank Account, Appellant Owned The Contents Of The Account And Could Not Be Convicted For Withdrawing The Same

The Joint Account signature page/contract includes the word "joint" 6 different times, including "joint owners," "joint member," and "joint share agreement." AA00195. The Appellant is specifically listed as the "Joint

Member" both on the information block and on Appellant's signature block on the Joint Account signature page/contract. AA00195. Accordingly, under NRS 100.085(4), the multiple uses of the word "Joint" "indicates the intent of the depositor (Mr. Mencarelli) that the account be held in joint tenancy". Under NRS 100.085(1), "the deposit is the property of the persons as joint tenants," and "the account or proceeds from the account are owned by the persons named, and may be paid or delivered to any of them during the lifetime of all."

Unfortunately, the Trial Court was persuaded by the State's citation to this Court's opinion in *Walch v. State*, 112 Nev. 25, 909 P.2d 1184 (1996). However, the portions of *Walch v. State* that were relied upon by the Trial Court and its sister case *Starr v. Rousselet*, 110 Nev. 706, 877 P.2d 525 (1994), were legislatively overruled by the Nevada Legislature's amendment to NRS 100.085 in 1995, following this Court's ruling in *Starr v. Rousselet*.

Walch v. State was decided by this Court in 1996, after the amendment to NRS 100.085. Perhaps the Trial Court believed that because Walch v. State was decided after the 1995 amendment of NRS 100.085 that this Court in Walch v. State was interpreting the amended statute. However, that is not the case. The facts of Walch v. State occurred in December 1991 and 1992 when the joint account in that case was created and the funds were withdrawn. Walch v. State was decided by the district court and this Court under the old statute. Accordingly, the language in Walch v. State relied upon by the Trial Court in this

case, specifically "mere status as a party to the joint accounts did not provide her with lawful authority to use Nell's assets for her own benefit," is a misstatement of law under NRS 100.085 as amended in 1995.

This Court in the recent case of *Pedroli Ranches Partnership v. Pedroli*, 2017 Nev. App. Unpub. LEXIS 299, 2017 WL 2119474, , docket number 67469 (May 9, 2017)(unpublished decision), specifically discussed the 1995 amendment to NRS 100.085 following this Court's decision in *Starr v. Rousselet*, and held that all one needed to do to create an NRS 100.085 joint account was use the word "joint" on the bank signature card as prescribed by NRS 100.085(4). This Court in *Pedroli* held:

In denying Barbara's motion for a new trial, the district court relied on *Starr v. Rousselet*, which held that "a simple reference to a 'joint' account and to joint access or control on a bank signature card will not suffice for purposes of establishing a joint tenancy under NRS 100.085[(1)]." 110 Nev. 706, 712, 877 P.2d 525, 530 (1994) (footnote omitted). The district court reasoned that labeling an account "JT-OR" was insufficient to invoke the presumption of joint tenancy under NRS 100.085(1), and thus it was unnecessary to give the clear and convincing instruction.

The district court, however, failed to recognize that *Starr* was explicitly rejected by the Nevada Legislature in 1995. *See* Legislative Counsel's Digest, 68th Leg., S.B. 424 (1995) (noting the Legislature found *Starr* to be "contrary to the traditional creation of a joint tenancy [account]"). **In response to the** *Starr* **decision, the Legislature added NRS 100.085(4) which holds that labeling an account a joint account indicates that the depositor(s) intended the account be held in joint tenancy.** *See* **NRS 100.085(4). (emphasis added).** *Id***.**

This Court in *Pedroli* went on to state that once it is determined that an

account was created using the word "joint," that a rebuttable presumption is created that requires the party objecting to the joint account to prove by clear and convincing evidence that there was a different intent. *Id.* This shifting of the burden of proof is irrelevant in this case as the State never contested the existence of the Joint Account. In its argument opposing the Appellant's Objection to Jury Instruction 18, the State made it clear that it had not even attempted to characterize, nevertheless prove, that the establishment of the Joint Account was a crime or was in any way improper. The State admitted that its case was based solely on the Appellant's withdrawal of funds from her Joint Account on July 5, 2013 and the *Walch v. State* quote which was legislatively overruled in 1995:

Mr. Raman: The taking was when Helen took the \$195,000 of Del's money from the joint account and put it into her own sole account. That's why we've charged July 5th, 2013 as being the crime. For us to backwards prove, well, what was her criminal intent at the time a joint account was created, well, now you have circumstances where two people create a joint account years ago, that account's never funded. Then somebody loses capacity, as they have in this case. The person who's taking advantage, transfers money from another account of theirs and then takes it. Now we have to prove all of a sudden 20 years ago that that account was made for this purpose? That's totally contrary to all common decency.

That would allow theft to reign supreme. Now, obviously, Walch does not stand for what the defense is purporting it to stand for and I believe Your Honor is correct that the Instructions as they're written is how they should stand. AA00083 - 00084.

Further, the final holding in *Walch v. State* showed that the primary issue in that case involved Ms. Walch stealing money from the sole account of the victim, Ms. Laird, and then seeking to save herself by depositing stolen funds

into a separate joint account that Ms. Walch had with Ms. Laird. This Court held that "Walch's status as joint holder of the two accounts did not preclude the jury from finding that she stole funds which passed through the accounts." *Id.* 112 Nev. at 34, 909 P.2d at 1189.

In the case at bar, the Appellant was never charged with nor accused of depositing stolen funds into the Joint Account. Instead Appellant was accused and convicted of withdrawing funds from her uncontested Joint Account, which she had full access to for over a year before she removed the funds on July 5. 2013. As an owner of the Joint Account, Appellant could not have committed any crime by withdrawing funds from her own bank account.

VI. <u>CONCLUSION</u>

Appellant simply withdrew funds from her own Joint Account, which she was lawfully entitled to do under NRS 100.085 and the Bank's signature page/contract executed by Mr. Mencarelli and Appellant. Appellant respectfully maintains that Jury Instruction Number 18 is a misstatement of law that allowed the Jury to ignore NRS 100.085. But for the Trial Court giving Jury Instruction Number 18 and its and reliance on *Walch v. State*, the State's case against

24 | / / / 25 | / / /

Appellant would had to have been dismissed after the State completed its case, or at least after the verdict when Appellant moved the Court to do so.

DATED this 14th day of December, 2017.

FOLEY & OAKES, PC

By:/s/ Daniel T. Foley
Daniel T. Foley, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 1078
626 So. 8th Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorneys for Appellant