I. ARGUMENT 

A. The Majority of the State’s Answering Brief Consists of an Irrelevant

Statement of Facts Including a Knowingly False and Libelous 

Accusation 

The State opens its Statement of Facts with a knowingly false and libelous 

misrepresentation that Appellant exploited $25,000 from her 30-year life 

companion, Mr. Mencarelli.  Although the State cites to page 33 of the 

Appellant’s Appendix to support this representation, there is no mention on that 

page or anywhere else in the record that Appellant exploited $25,000 from Mr. 

Mencarelli.   

Otherwise, the State, after providing some basic background information 

regarding the 30 plus year relationship between Appellant and Mr. Mencarelli, 

spends four pages of its brief (pages 4, 5, 6, and 7) reciting irrelevant facts with 

minimal support which have nothing whatsoever to do with the issue on appeal in 

this case.  Appellant will not respond to those irrelevant statements regardless of 

their falsity and inaccuracy, other than to inform the Court that Appellant and 

Ms. Black both filed Petitions with the Guardianship Court to be appointed 

Guardian over Mr. Mencarelli. Appellant prevailed before the Guardianship 

Commissioner after an 11-day trial and Ms. Black did not object to the 

Commissioner’s recommendation and did not appeal the Judge Hoskin’s 

acceptance of that recommendation.  AA 00066, lines 7 – 9.   

The primary relevant facts in this case are found in the stipulated trial 
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exhibits, AA00195, AA00193, and AA00027 (the Credit Union records), the 

transcript from the hearing settling jury instructions AA00077- 00096, and the 

Jury Instructions AA0097 – 100.  The Credit Union records evidence, without 

any dispute or conflicting interpretation, Mr. Mencarelli’s creation of the Joint 

Account with Appellant on July 23 2012, Appellant’s withdrawal of $195,000 

from her Joint Account on July 5, 2013, Appellant’s redeposit of the $195,000 

into her Joint Account on July 31, 2013, and the fact that Appellant did not spend 

a dime of the $195,000 during the 26 days the funds were in her sole account.  

B. The Appellant Did Provide a Complete Record On Appeal. 

In setting forth its largely irrelevant Statement of Facts, the State 

complains in passing that the Appellant may not have provided a complete record 

on Appeal by not ordering all of the trial transcripts.  Although the State does not 

dispute the Appellant’s Statement of Facts or claim any prejudice or basis for 

dismissal or sanction, the Appellant is only required to request and submit the 

“necessary” portions of the transcripts.  NRAP Rule 9(a)(1)(B).  In the case at 

bar, the issue on appeal is extremely narrow and focused, i.e. the giving of the 

erroneous Jury Instruction #18.  Appellant provided this Court with the transcript 

from the hearing settling jury instructions which included the arguments to the 

Trial Court on the part of both parties regarding Jury Instruction #18.  AA0077- 

00096.  Further, the record on appeal in the Appellant’s Appendix includes all 

relevant exhibits admitted at trial that relate to the Joint Bank Account.  Finally, 
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the State had the ability to supplement the record on appeal or order any other 

transcripts that it desired.  NRAP Rule 9(a)(5).  The State deemed the record 

sufficient and did not seek to supplement it in any way.  NRAP Rule 9(b)(2) and 

NRAP Rule 10(c).           

C. As A Joint Owner Of The Subject Credit Union Account, Appellant 

Absolutely Owned The Contents Of The Account And Did In Fact 

Have Carte Blanche to Withdraw Any Funds Therefrom. 

 

On Page 11 of the Answering Brief, the State proclaims that Appellant’s 

interpretation of NRS 100.085 (1) and (4) must be wrong, otherwise a depositor 

who adds a joint tenant to his or her account would be giving “carte blanche” to 

the new joint tenant to take whatever funds he or she wanted from the joint 

account.   

Appellant’s response to this statement is YES, that is exactly what happens 

when a depositor adds a joint tenant to his or her account as per the specific terms 

of NRS 100.085(1) and (4). 

NRS 100.085(1) provides in pertinent part: “When a deposit has been 

made in the name of the depositor and one or more other persons, and in a form 

intended to be paid or delivered to any one of them, or the survivor or survivors 

of them, the deposit is the property of the persons as joint tenants.  If an 

account is intended to be held in joint tenancy, the account or proceeds from 

the account are owned by the persons named, and may be paid or delivered 



 

4 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

to any of them during the lifetime of all.  (emphasis added) 

NRS 100.085(4) provides in pertinent part:  

[T]he use by the depositor of any of the following words or terms in 

designating the ownership of an account indicates the intent of the 

depositor that the account be held in joint tenancy: 

 

      (a) Joint; 

      (b) Joint account; 

      (c) Jointly held; 

      (d) Joint tenants; 

      (e) Joint tenancy; or 

      (f) Joint tenants with right of survivorship 

 Thus, when Mr. Mencarelli created the Joint Account by providing the 

information and signing the Credit Union “Signature Card,” AA00195, wherein 

the word “joint” appears six (6) different times, including “joint owners,” “joint 

member,” and “joint share agreement,” per NRS 100.085(4) he intended “that the 

account be held in joint tenancy.”  Thus per NRS 100.085(1), “the deposit is the 

property of the persons as joint tenants” and “the account or proceeds from the 

account are owned by the persons named, and may be paid or delivered to any of 

them during the lifetime of all.”   

This is not a disputed interpretation of the statute, this is the clear and 

unambiguous quoted language of the statute.  This Court has held, "[w]hen 

interpreting a statute, we first determine whether its language is ambiguous. If the 

language is clear and unambiguous, we do not look beyond its plain meaning. ..." 

Stockmeier v. Psychological Review Panel, 122 Nev. 534, 539, 135 P.3d 807, 810 
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(2006).  "A statute's language is ambiguous when it is capable of more than one 

reasonable interpretation." Orion Portfolio Servs. 2, LLC v. Cty. of Clark ex rel. 

Univ. Med. Ctr. of S. Nev., 126 Nev. 397, 402, 245 P.3d 527, 531 (2010).   

Per NRS 100.085, the Appellant was, without dispute by the State, a joint 

tenant on the Joint Account beginning on July 23, 2012.  Accordingly, the 

Appellant owned all of the proceeds in the Joint Account as of July 23, 2012.  In 

July 2013, one year later, the Appellant simply withdrew her own $195,000 from 

one account and put into another account for 26 days.   

D. The State Continues to Conveniently Ignore The Actual Ruling By 

This Court in Walch v. State. 

 

The State failed to address Appellant’s analysis in the Opening of Brief 

regarding this Court’s primary holding in Walch v. State.  In that case, Ms. Walch 

stole money from Ms. Laird’s sole bank account and then sought to gain cover or 

protection from her criminal act by depositing those stolen funds into a joint 

account that Ms. Walch had with Ms. Laird.  This Court held that Ms. Walch's 

status as joint holder of the account into which stolen funds were deposited did 

not in any way absolve her of her crime of theft.  Id. 112 Nev. at 34, 909 P.2d at 

1189. 

Appellant never stole any of Mr. Mencarelli funds and deposited them into 

the subject Joint Account.  Appellant did not create the Joint Account, Mr. 

Mencarelli did.  Appellant never sought cover or protection of a prior criminal 
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act.  The case at bar is completely dissimilar to Walch v. State.   

E. The State Ignored This Court’s Ruling in Pedroli Ranches Partnership 

v. Pedroli. 

 

Appellant cited in her Opening Brief to this Court’s recent opinion of 

Pedroli Ranches Partnership v. Pedroli, 2017 Nev. App. Unpub. LEXIS 299, 

2017 WL 2119474, docket number 67469 (May 9, 2017)(unpublished decision).  

The State completely avoided discussing or attempting to distinguish the case.   

This appeal is based entirely on NRS 100.085.  This Court in Pedroli, 

specifically discussed the 1995 amendment to NRS 100.085 and Starr v. 

Rousselet, 110 Nev. 706, 877 P.2d 525 (1994) for the first time since 1995 and 

discussed at length the significance of the use of word “joint” in the context of 

multiple party bank accounts.  The State’s refusal to respond to this critical issue 

and case in Appellant’s Opening Brief should be considered as a confession of 

error by this Court. 

This Court in Polk v. State, 126 Nev. 180, 233 P.3d 357 (2010) held  

[w]e have routinely invoked our discretion and enforced NRAP 31(d) 

when no answering brief has been filed, see County Comm'rs v. Las 

Vegas Discount Golf, 110 Nev. 567, 569-70, 875 P.2d 1045, 1046 

(1994); State of Rhode Island v. Prins, 96 Nev. 565, 566, 613 P.2d 

408, 409 (1980). We have also determined that a party confessed error 

when that party's answering brief effectively failed to address a 

significant issue raised in the appeal. See Bates v. Chronister, 100 

Nev. 675, 681-82, 691 P.2d 865, 870 (1984) (treating the respondent's 

failure to respond to the appellant's argument as a confession of 

error); A Minor v. Mineral Co. Juv. Dep't, 95 Nev. 248, 249, 592 P.2d 

172, 173 (1979) (determining that the answering brief was silent on 

the issue in question, resulting in a confession of error); Moore v. 

https://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=5433037003222164516&q=failure+to+respond+to+argument&hl=en&as_sdt=4,29&as_ylo=2010&as_yhi=2018
https://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=5433037003222164516&q=failure+to+respond+to+argument&hl=en&as_sdt=4,29&as_ylo=2010&as_yhi=2018
https://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=5433037003222164516&q=failure+to+respond+to+argument&hl=en&as_sdt=4,29&as_ylo=2010&as_yhi=2018
https://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=13459411829474755116&q=failure+to+respond+to+argument&hl=en&as_sdt=4,29&as_ylo=2010&as_yhi=2018
https://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=13459411829474755116&q=failure+to+respond+to+argument&hl=en&as_sdt=4,29&as_ylo=2010&as_yhi=2018
https://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=1128094251299512250&q=failure+to+respond+to+argument&hl=en&as_sdt=4,29&as_ylo=2010&as_yhi=2018
https://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=1128094251299512250&q=failure+to+respond+to+argument&hl=en&as_sdt=4,29&as_ylo=2010&as_yhi=2018
https://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=2549512804655078726&q=failure+to+respond+to+argument&hl=en&as_sdt=4,29&as_ylo=2010&as_yhi=2018
https://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=2549512804655078726&q=failure+to+respond+to+argument&hl=en&as_sdt=4,29&as_ylo=2010&as_yhi=2018
https://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=14338581642718449853&q=failure+to+respond+to+argument&hl=en&as_sdt=4,29&as_ylo=2010&as_yhi=2018
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State, 93 Nev. 645, 647, 572 P.2d 216, 217 (1977) (concluding that 

even though the State acknowledged the issue on appeal, it failed to 

supply any analysis, legal or otherwise, to support its position and 

"effectively] filed no brief at all," which constituted confession of 

error), overruled on other grounds by Miller v. State, 121 Nev. 92, 95-

96, 110 P.3d 53, 56 (2005). Id. at 126 Nev. at 184 – 185, 233 P.3d at 

360. 

     

Again, this Court in Pedroli held “[i]n response to the Starr decision, the 

Legislature added NRS 100.085(4) which holds that labeling an account a 

joint account indicates that the depositor(s) intended the account be held in 

joint tenancy. See NRS 100.085(4). (emphasis added).  Id.  This Court went on 

to state that once it is determined that an account was created using the word 

“joint,” that a rebuttable presumption is created that requires the party objecting 

to the joint account to prove by clear and convincing evidence that there was a 

different intent.  Id.   

 Again, there really is no dispute regarding this Court’s opinion in Pedroli  

and its determinative effect on this appeal.  The State’s refusal to address Pedroli 

even without a sanction amounting to a confession of error is clear evidence that 

the State is unable to justify its position given the unambiguous statute and the 

common sense opinion in Pedroli.     

F. The State’s Argument that Walch v. State Was Decided In 1996 After 

The 1995 Amendment Of NRS 100.085 Is Preposterous. 
 

On page 11 of its Opening Brief, the State makes a passing statement that 

this Court’s decision in Walch v. State was decided in 1996 and this Court was 

https://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=14338581642718449853&q=failure+to+respond+to+argument&hl=en&as_sdt=4,29&as_ylo=2010&as_yhi=2018
https://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=859330008993749983&q=failure+to+respond+to+argument&hl=en&as_sdt=4,29&as_ylo=2010&as_yhi=2018
https://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=859330008993749983&q=failure+to+respond+to+argument&hl=en&as_sdt=4,29&as_ylo=2010&as_yhi=2018
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aware of the 1995 Amendment to NRS 100.085.  The State does not argue that 

the Amended Statute had any application to the facts of Walch v. State.  The State 

does not argue that this Court applied the 1995 Amended Statute retroactively to 

the 1991 and 1992 facts of Walch.  Instead, the State simply throws out the date 

of the Walch opinion, suggests some basic speculation, and moves on.  The State 

does not address Appellant’s argument on the exact subject in her Opening Brief.  

Again, although Walch v. State was decided by this Court in 1996, the facts of the 

case occurred in December 1991 and 1992 when the joint account was created 

and the funds were withdrawn.  Walch v. State was decided by the district court 

and this Court under the pre-1995 version of NRS 100.085 consistent with Starr 

v. Rousselet.  The language in Walch v. State relied upon by the Trial Court in 

this case, “mere status as a party to the joint accounts did not provide her with 

lawful authority to use Nell's assets for her own benefit,” is a misstatement of law 

under NRS 100.085 as amended in 1995.   

G. The State’s Argument That NRS 100.085 Is Solely For The Protection    

Of Banks and Depositories Is Wrong and Unsupported. 

 

The State implies in its Answering Brief that NRS 100.085 cannot be used 

to support the position of depositors who create joint accounts, but is only 

available for the protection of depositors such as banks.  As this Court in Walch  

stated, depositors certainly gain protection from the statute; however, there is no 

support anywhere for the proposition that depositors gain no rights or protections 

from the statute.  Joint checking accounts are used by couples, siblings, parents 
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and children for many different reasons, including estate planning. NRS 100.085 

and its amendment in 1995 provide certainty to individuals that their financial 

decisions and affairs will be carried out without interference from others.  Both a 

depositor who creates the joint account and a person added onto a joint account 

are afforded protection by the statute and have every right to seek enforcement of 

their statutory rights in Court.   There is absolute nothing in NRS 100.850 that in 

anyway restricts or limits it’s application or the protections afforded therein to 

just depositories such as banks.  Of course the State does not cite this Court to 

any authority, but instead make just another passing mention in an effort to imply 

some non-existent law or policy.      

II. CONCLUSION 

 The State by choosing to ignore the 1995 amendments to NRS 100.085 and 

the Pedroli opinion cannot render the statute or the case law inapplicable or 

moot.  The State’s unsupported claims and personal opinions that NRS 100.085 

solely protects banks and has no application to depositors who choose to create 

joint accounts is self-serving, parochial, and completely unsupported.  

 NRS 100.085 is clear and unambiguous.  It was amended in 1995 to 

legislatively over rule Starr v. Rousselet and this Court in Pedroli has made clear 

that depositors who use the statutory language “joint” with respect to their bank 

accounts intend to and do create Joint Accounts wherein all deposits therein are 

owned in whole by all parties to the Joint Account.   
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 The State has never questioned the authenticity of Appellant’s and Mr. 

Mencarelli’s Joint Account.  Accordingly, Appellant owned all funds in the Joint 

Account as July 23, 2013 and on July 5, 2013 when she withdrew funds 

therefrom.   

 The Trial Court correctly instructed the Jury with Instruction #16: “When 

a deposit has been made in the name of the depositor and one or more other 

persons, and in a form intended to be paid or delivered to any one of them, or the 

survivor or survivors of them, the deposit is the property of the persons as joint 

tenants.” AA00098. 

However, the Trial Court then gave the opposite Jury Instruction Number 

18:  “A person’s status as a joint account holder does not by itself provide lawful 

authority to use or transfer another’s assets for their own benefit.” AA00100.  

Appellant respectfully maintains that Jury Instruction Number 18 is a 

misstatement of law that allowed the Jury to ignore NRS 100.085.  But for the 

Trial Court giving Jury Instruction Number 18 and its and reliance on Walch v. 

State, the State’s case against Appellant would had to have been dismissed after 

the State completed its case, or at least after the verdict when Appellant moved 

the Court to do so.    

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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Appellant respectfully requests that this Court reverse the Guilty verdict 

against Appellant and remand the case with Instructions to dismiss all charges 

against Appellant for withdrawing her own funds from the Joint Account.